Faculty Caucus Minutes
Wednesday, February 7, 2018

Unapproved
Call to Order
Senate Chairperson Susan Kalter called the meeting to order. 

Action items:

01.30.18.01 02.06.18.01 Substitute motion on XII-B-3
01.09.18.10 Article XII, General Considerations, FC Final 2018
Senator Kalter: (The first section of the recording was cut off.  Senator Kalter’s introduction to the meeting is first audible from this point:)  That wording may not be the same for them (Milner and Mennonite) ultimately.  So going on, it says then, "Likewise, any administrator or member of a committee involved in a disciplinary proceeding who deems themself disqualified for bias, conflict of interest, or conflict of commitment will remove themselves from the case either at the request of the faculty member or of the initiator of the proceedings or on their own initiative.  If either the faculty member being considered for discipline or the initiator of the proceedings would like to request that a member of the CFSC or FRC be removed, the faculty member or initiator will have three business days to submit a letter detailing the grounds for recusal to the chairperson of the Academic Freedom, Ethics, and Grievance Committee.  The AFEGC chair will send the decision regarding whether the proposed grounds for recusal are valid to the Provost, dean (if applicable), FRC (if applicable), and faculty member within five business days.  Should recusal result in a CFSC of less than five members, the senior elected members, by years in service, of the DFSCs/SFSCs of the college, not from the department in which the faculty member is appointed, and who are not deemed disqualified for bias, conflict of interest, or conflict of commitment, will serve on the CFSC in order to formulate a recommendation.  Should a dean recuse from a CFSC, an associate dean previously designated by the dean to substitute in disciplinary cases will chair the CFSC deliberations.  Substitutes will be designated annually on July 1.  The associate dean will have full voting rights as acting dean in the case."  And as you see at the bottom of that, it says that if after debate on this motion above, once we put it on the floor as a motion to amend, if it fails then we can make motions to strike XII.B.3.  Okay.  So let me ask first, does anybody want to put that motion on the floor as a motion to amend?

Motioned by Senator Horst, seconded by Senator Blum to amend.

Senator Kalter: Awesome.  We have debate then.  Let's debate this amendment.  Do we like it?  Do we want to change it?  What do we think of it?  Any debate?

Senator Laudner: So, if the CFSC was to result in less than five members and we were to take a member from the DFSC or SFSC from a different area, isn't there a conflict between serving on both the DFSC and the CFSC at the same time?  I mean, you're not allowed to do that.

Senator Kalter: I do think that in the ordinary tenure, promotion, appointment, salary process, there is…  Let me ask the URC if they foresee any conflict there because remembering that if, for example, a DFSC were the initiator of a disciplinary action, nobody on that DFSC or even in that department would be able to serve on the CFSC even in a recusal case.  It would only be from a different department in that same college.
Senator Laudner: Right, but in the bylaws it says you're not allowed to sit on both committees at the same time.

Senator Kalter: Which bylaws?  Are you talking about ASPT policy itself?  The green book?

Senator Laudner: Yeah.  I don't remember if it's the department or not, but I know we've had people that – we've run into that problem before where they were actually on both committees and they had to step off one for that reason.
Senator Kalter: Dr. Catanzaro, do you think that is university policy, college policies, or what's the meaning of the word "bylaw" in that?

Dr. Catanzaro: I'm checking.  My memory is that the university ASPT policies explicitly state that an individual can only be on one ASPT committee at a time.  It's Article I.C for those of you who are keeping score.  

Senator Kalter: Article I.C, is that what you said?  For those keeping score.  Is that what you said?  

Dr. Catanzaro: That's what I said.  And that would be page 5 of the physical copy of the green book.

Senator Kalter: All right.  So let me read that out where you are.  The very last sentence says no faculty – oh wait, sorry – the second sentence, "Faculty members shall be eligible to serve on only one of the following elected bodies at a time" and then it lists that.  Now, the question that Senator Laudner brings up does not necessarily disable this amendment.  What we could do is change Article I.C, but that may be inadvisable and so that's why I'm asking URC.  Do you think that in the case of disciplinary actions that it would cause a problem to change that rule to allow, on a one-case basis, for somebody to serve on a CFSC temporarily?

Dr. Dean: Yes, actually, I do.  My own views, when the discussion was occurring the last time we met, were that this paragraph should actually be struck because we already have clear policies and guidelines in the ASPT manual on the recusal for people on committees and how that proceeds, and I think it opens up a lot of complications to insert new and very specific and very different type policies and procedures just for this one type of action.  Do you want to add anything to that?
Dr. Ellerton: I think it is very important that the guidelines are simple and clear, and if they're clear in the one place, any modifications would need to have ramifications for what's already in the booklet.  So really, I agree with the chair there.

Dr. Catanzaro: An additional consideration could be that when an individual serves as a temporary CFSC member and then reverts to the DFSC, it could have an influence on future deliberations involving that DFSC and CFSC.

Senator Kalter: Even though the deliberation is not about a department member in that person's department.  

Dr. Catanzaro: Right.  So, it creates a context in which it's possible that some relationship gets established between the DFSC members and the CFSC members.  There is a question about how thick the firewall should be between the different committees.  I don't know that that's a deal breaker consideration, but the integrity of the entire system is part of the purpose of this.  So, just throwing that out.

Senator Kalter: All right.  Further debate?

Senator Blum: Yes, there's two different issues.  I mean, part of the issue was just through a recusal process, whatever.  I mean, to use another recusal process, but the getting to too small a committee, you know, you're pulling two people.  All right, so you've already, like in the College of Education you've pulled two department so we're already down to five.  Right?  So just even one more, and we're below five.  So, you get two more; now we're down to three.  So it's really easy to get to smaller numbers because we've already pulled, as I agree that we should, the people from the department.  So, it's not so much how people are recused but the problem of numbers is, I think, a genuine one which I think is the core issue that needs to be addressed is how do we deal with the fact that we are, for very good reason, by rule, recusing departmental people?  And so, then how do we deal with the fact that we could have these other recusals and, you know, unless it's a larger college with a very large CFSC that you're going to get down to below five really easily?  
Senator Kalter: Thank you, and was that an argument in favor of the motion or against the motion?

Senator Blum: Well, it's a dilemma.  Yeah, I'm not sure I can say for or against.  I guess what I would say is there remains a need to address that part of the motion.
Senator Kalter: Okay.  Thank you.

Senator Horst: I'd like to speak in favor of the motion that I made.  The logic of recusal comes from the AFEGC policy where department members are automatically recused.  As we were talking about with the Consensual Relations Policy, there's all sorts of situations you can envision where it might be appropriate for somebody to recuse themselves.  In a small college, such as the College of Fine Arts, you have Theatre and Dance, Music, Art – 2, 2, 2.  So, we're in the same boat that it could very quickly get below a number that seems appropriate.  In the College of Fine Arts in particular, I am advocating that members of the college come in from the same college because I think this whole logic that the college is the first body to see this case, there's an understanding, for instance, there's a sort of practice in the College of Fine Arts where we work one-on-one with students, we manipulate students' bodies, we do certain things that are appropriate in the fine arts tradition.  So if you had a case from a Fine Arts faculty that involved something like that, there might be an understanding from college faculty in that college that you wouldn't necessarily get from the College of Arts and Sciences.  You can imagine a case where a lab faculty has some sort of situation with a student and then it's the way that a lab works it would be appropriate to shove a student out of the way, and another person from a similar discipline could potentially be more sensitive to that.  I don't know anything about the labs.  I do notes.  So that's why I am advocating that members of the same college are placed into the…  For a recusal, I'm advocating that the replacement is from the same college, and I'm also advocating that it's somebody that's from a current DFSC because they're more familiar with the current ASPT documents.  At one point we entertained maybe former people, former CFSC members, or something like that.  But this green book can change, and so if you're on the DFSC you are aware of the current procedures.  So that's why we came up with this concept it would be somebody who's currently serving as opposed to pulling somebody from the past.  So that's where that idea came from.  So I am advocating that it be somebody from the college.  And if it's not somebody from the college, I think it's a real problem.
Senator Nichols: And again, I'm not sure that this is actually an argument against that, but I think in larger colleges that provision doesn't do what you want it to.  In the example of lab safety, somebody from Biology could be replaced by somebody from History.  And you don't really have expertise about lab safety coming in just because someone's a member of the same college.  I think smaller, more discrete colleges, you probably do see those types of assessments more often where they'd be more familiar with it, but I don't know how much use that would be in a large college like CAS.

Senator Kalter: I think that's an important point and that the wording of the amendment could be changed slightly so that it's somebody from the same division.  So if you lost somebody in the Sciences, you'd get somebody in the Sciences, etc.  But I think that's a really good point taken there.  Further debate?
Senator Ferrence: So I'm going to follow that up as the chemist in the audience, and I'm not sure if this was the point being made, but I guess as a member of CAS, I feel that I can do okay evaluating other disciplines.  I'm well educated, advanced degree.  I can learn the culture that I need to for the case at hand.  As somebody who – okay, I know it goes in the minutes – but who has been in their lab on fire from their waist to their neck, personally, and hospitalized as a result, there are definitely cases where I would forcibly push a student out of the way and it can happen.  But I would expect that I would have no issues with an English faculty member, if I was explaining the circumstances, that they'd very quickly come up to speed and go, yeah, okay, it's hard to imagine that happening in any book (other than maybe Inkspell), but I think colleagues can make that transition even if they're not fully within the discipline.  Not necessarily going for or against the motion on that.  It's more in terms of the reasoning.  I am worried about too small of representation, but I can also see that the problem with dual service on a CFSC and DFSC at the same time, so it makes it a complicated matter.

Senator Nichols: And just for clarification, would you say that that line extends beyond the relationship but within the same college?  Would you feel comfortable assessing somebody outside of CAS?

Senator Ferrence: I have assessed people within CAS that are far further from my day to day expertise than many of the people who are in colleges that are not part of CAS.  So, absolutely.  I mean, as somebody in CAS, if I'm willing to sit on the – and I have sat on the CFSC there – I have to evaluate people that think books are valuable.  And I'm in a discipline where only retirees write books.  So, you learn that there are different disciplinary expertise.
Senator Nichols: Okay, thanks.

Senator Ohler: It seems like in determining the appropriateness of assessment, I just want to understand that what we're assessing here are not academic assessments.  They're assessments of behaviors that would warrant sanctions, suspensions, and dismissals.  And is something that would warrant a sanction in a behavior that warrants sanctioning or suspensions in the College of Fine Arts absolutely different than something that would warrant a sanction and suspension in the College of Arts and Sciences?
Senator Horst: There's lots of cases that I could, you know, bring to light.  But, for instance, an Acting faculty who asks a student to behave a certain way in a scene and then gives them instruction in a certain way could be interpreted in one light by different people.  I know of a Music faculty who asked a student to do the tango so they could demonstrate that and they have a sexual harassment case against them.  So, maybe it's particular to the College of Fine Arts, but we do a lot of one-on-one instruction which involves a lot of different types of interactions with students as opposed to just traditional classroom settings that can lead to a lot of uncomfortable situations.  And it can be a different way that we interact with students.  So a lot of disciplinary cases have resulted from that sort of interaction that could be interpreted in different ways.
Senator Kalter: I want to answer your question a little bit differently, Senator Ohler.  I think the answer to what you're asking is yes.  In other words, that generally when you're dealing with sanction, suspension, or dismissal you're often dealing with things that cross disciplines.  Like if it's a dismissal case and it's – what is it called – the failure to teach in an appropriate way (I can't remember exactly how it's…)

Dr. Catanzaro: To meet professional standards or something.  

Senator Kalter: Thank you.  To meet professional standards.  You're not showing up for class.  You know, you're saying bizarre things in front of your class.  So, even when it is a performance related issue.  But these are disciplinary articles, right?  So it is something where somebody is misbehaving in a way that is a little bit more cross disciplinary than deciding whether somebody should get credit for having an article versus a book and all of that kind of stuff.

Dr. Catanzaro: A couple of observations.  Following up on Senator Ohler's suggestion, it seems to me that the crux of the matter in any disciplinary proceeding would be…  Certainly in these examples, in the fine arts where there can be pedagogically appropriate physical contact that would be very unusual in most other disciplines.  But also what we're talking about in discipline is a finding.  Right?  So, let's say the student in the Acting class who has his or her shoulders and back posed in a particular way and then the hand goes to the hip and saying "Stand this way" and then that gets framed as a grope.  Okay?  So there's the example that was not intended as such.  Most observers familiar with the pedagogical culture would not have seen that as inappropriate, but the student makes a claim.  The faculty member makes the case.  If that's a strong case, then the sexual harassment claim doesn't result in a finding and there's nothing to act on discipline?  
Senator Kalter: So a more abbreviated way of saying what Dr. Catanzaro is saying is that that kind of a case would come from an OEOA finding and through the Provost's office, go to a CFSC after there has been a finding that there was, in fact, sexual harassment.  So it would not be the CFSC that would be deciding that there was sexual harassment.

Dr. Catanzaro: Correct.

Senator Kalter: It would be the CFSC deciding what the penalty was.  Right?  I don't know if that was more succinct, but it was a different wording.
Dr. Catanzaro: I think it was a little more succinct, so thank you.  And then another observation that might lead to a friendly amendment or might go nowhere in this proposal, and very sympathetic to the spirit of this – and we're just trying to figure out the best most workable way to account for a CFSC that's not big enough to really provide a fair process – if you were to restrict the substitute members to DFSC and SFSC members, you might miss out on a really valuable faculty member who by virtue of just having completed two terms on DFSC or SFSC is not eligible and so by this policy would not be available to be the sub but perhaps if there were a college-wide election would be a very strong candidate to get a majority.  That creates other complications, having a special election, but there can be a pool of talent and experience that this suggestion misses.  Just a thought.

Senator Kalter: So we are definitely not going to go to a system where we have to elect when a case has already been in process, but the original proposal to the Executive Committee was written so that you would pull from people who had served on the CFSC in the year past.  In other words, they had just stepped off.  So that was the original proposal, but the Executive Committee was concerned that what that meant, then, was what Senator Horst said.  First of all, there may be updates to the green book.  But also that they are not serving currently.  Right?  And so they may balk at the idea that they would be pulled on to that committee.  So that was why it was actually former chairperson Crothers who suggested the alternative of the DFSCs because those people are actively looking at ASPT policies.  But, just so that you understand, and all of you understand (because only six people saw that original draft that went to the Executive Committee), that was actually in our minds that that pool is almost infinite.  Right?  You could go back as many years as you needed to, but in large colleges like CAST you would never have to.  In smaller colleges, you would still have a large pool rather than just the DFSCs.
Dr. Ellerton: Just an observation, and it picks up on a number of points, the initial makeup for the group that would be looking at that disciplinary action was acceptable.  That was, everyone would accept that as appropriate so that any makeup for members who recused themselves, etc. would need to be both seen to be acceptable by everybody and also be acceptable.  So that's, I think, a background to consider how that might be done.  And I think that that probably gets to the heart of some of the objections to keeping that phrasing and the need to fill it.  In other words, what would be an appropriate way to fill that gap so that everyone feels it's appropriate including the person who is under discussion as well as those serving?  That they feel, yes, we're appointed by an appropriate body and we feel we can do the job.  And that previous discussion about opening it up to people who have served previously on either CFSC or DFSC, might be one way of addressing that.  

Senator Kalter: Further debate and/or any amendments?
Senator Laudner: I have a question.  In the first paragraph, the very last line, it says "either at the request of the faculty member or of the initiator of the proceedings," who are we talking about?  Who is the faculty member and who is the initiator?

Senator Kalter: You're on the marked up copy portion?  Or are you on the…

Senator Laudner: I'm on the Substitute Motion.
Senator Kalter: Are you on the Substitute Motion 01.30 or 02.06?

Senator Laudner: 01.30.

Senator Kalter: Okay.  So we're debating 02.06.

Senator Laudner: I'm sorry.

Senator Kalter: And so you're at the sentence that comes right before the mark-up there.  You're talking about the sentence that reads, "Likewise, any administrator or member of a committee involved in a disciplinary proceeding who deems himself disqualified for bias" etc. "will remove themself from the case either at the request of the faculty member or of the initiator of the proceedings or on their own initiative."  In other words, you can recognize that you have a conflict of interest yourself and remove yourself.  You know, just say, "I have a conflict of interest.  I'm removing myself."  The faculty member can request it, but then they have to go through the AFEGC chair so that they can't just do a frivolous recusal, you know, willy-nilly.  Same with the initiator.  If the Provost as the initiator or the DFSC as the initiator knows of something they would also have to go and get the approval of the AFEGC chair and say yes, this is a legitimate…  We have found out that this person was the boyfriend of the person in question, and we don't think that that's appropriate for them to serve on their disciplinary CFSC.

Senator Laudner: Yeah, I was confused on who the initiator of the proceeding…  I was thinking that was the faculty member.
Senator Kalter: No, sorry.  That language is picking up from the terminology of the entirety of the articles that talks about initiators of proceedings as either the DFSC or as the Provost.
Dr. Dean: I think this is a terrific discussion, and as I'm listening to all the points of view it seems to me we may need to think even further outside the obvious.  And what I mean to say is this whole set of disciplinary articles are entirely new, so they're creating contexts and situations for us to consider that we've never had to consider before.  This issue of needing to replace a CFSC member, we've never had this discussion.  So I'm wondering if we might not need to move to a context in which we elect a CFSC alternate.  That that become a part of college elections, that there be alternate elected individuals who could step and stand in in this type of situation.
Senator Kalter: That's a possibility.

Senator Laudner: It's just tough because it could be in the same discipline of the person under review.  I mean, it's a great idea.  You just may run into that problem.

Senator Blum: You could elect multiple alternates to avoid that problem, but I think that the downside of that is that the alternate…  I mean, these are probably things that are going to occur not very frequently and so that you're going to have an alternate who may not be engaged…  I mean, who knows how long you might need for…  So, I mean, the idea of having, you know, CFSC members (this has come up several times) or DFSC or SFSC members is at least they've been in active discussions around faculty evaluation and faculty status.  So it's the pros and cons to it, but it does get around some of these other issues that people are bringing up.
Senator Kalter: Further debate?  All right.  Would anybody like to…  Should we close the debate and move to a vote on the amendment – whether to substitute that language in 02.06.18.01 for the language currently in our draft?  In other words, substitute it or just to go back to a debate on the original re-draft of Article XII.  Are we ready to vote?

Senator Horst: I would just say we'd have to also add a provision that we're going to also amend that section that says you can't serve on the DFSC and the CFSC.  So we would have to…

Senator Kalter: Yes.  We would have to bring back…  So right now in the packet of items that were forwarded, there is an 01.09.18.14 which has miscellaneous paragraphs from all throughout the green book, and we would have to add something to that list to make an exception for serving temporarily on a CFSC in a recusal case.  Remember, this is not somebody who's actually serving simultaneously.  They're doing a one-time thing and probably at most one year.  Right?  So we would have to do that.
Senator Horst: I'm just thinking we would have to do that.

Senator Kalter: We would have to do that.  We will do that.  If we were to vote this in, we would go back and change that stuff so that it's clear.  So are we ready to move to a vote on the amendment?

Senator Nichols: Would that second amendment, then, be up for a vote?  And if so, what if it didn't pass?

Senator Kalter: Well, if we like, we could actually include it here.  We could amend the motion to amend to say that we are going to write that exception.  Would that be more palatable in terms of voting to have that as part of the motion to amend?

Senator Crowley: Call the question on the motion as it stands.  

Senator Kalter: Okay.  Are there any objections to calling the question on the motion?  All right.  We, then, are moving to a vote.  So, all in favor of substituting the new language in 02.06.18.01 for the current proposed XII.B.3.
The motion to approve the revised amendment failed. 
Senator Kalter: So that motion fails.  We now go back to debating Article XII, and we can remain debating this small section as it says on that numbered communication, after debate on the motion to amend above, should the motion above fail (which it just did), any member of the Caucus may make a motion to strike either a portion of the proposed text of XII.B.3 or all of the text, or you can do anything else that you want to do.  

Senator Enriquez: I'm sorry.  I'm lost.  What are we back to?
Senator Kalter: So we are now back to looking at the main document, which is 01.09.18.10.  Yes, thank you.  And let me just refresh everybody's memory about where we were.  We had realized that we need to strike the word "probationary" from B.5 because that section can also refer to people just going up for promotion, not for tenure, and I'm trying to remember if there was anything else that we needed to change on this one.  Remember also, then, that on 01.09.18.10, we do still have a B.3 and I'll read that one.  So, currently that text reads, "To preserve the principle that there must be separation between the unit initiating sanction, suspension, or dismissal proceedings and the decision making and appeals bodies, no member of a CFSC or FRC who is a member of the same department as the faculty member being considered for discipline may participate in any disciplinary proceedings for that faculty member."  And I'll again just remind everybody that this may or may not apply to Milner and Mennonite depending on what they advise us about.  "Likewise, any administrator or member of a committee involved in a disciplinary proceeding who deems themselves disqualified for bias, conflict of interest, or conflict of commitment, will remove themselves from the case either at the request of the faculty member or of the initiator of the proceedings or on their own initiative.  The faculty member and the initiator of the proceedings will have a maximum of two challenges without stated cause" – so that's different.  "Should recusals result in a CFSC of less than five members, the elected members" (there's a typo there, so it should be plural), "the elected members of the CFSC of the college with the next highest number of faculty… " (and it had been noted that that wording needed to be changed to something like the next most populous college or what have you) "will act jointly with the CFSC of the faculty member's college in formulating a recommendation.  Should a dean's recusal result in a CFSC of less than five members, the dean of the college with the next highest number of faculty will also participate."  So both of those are quite, you know, going back to that wording that we did not like last time.  So that is why people can offer motions to amend or strike that current B.3.
Senator Horst: I'll make a motion to strike B.3 please.

Senator Kalter: In its entirety?

Senator Horst: Yes.

Senator Kalter: Okay.

Senator Horst: The problem is that we're going to end up with CFSCs with smaller numbers and I don't think it's a good idea to bring in people from other colleges.  I think the whole idea of bringing it to the CFSC is that you have a body of people from the same discipline, and so mixing in CFSC members from other colleges just isn't a system that makes sense to me.  So if we can't come up with a system that's going to bring in people that are trained from the same college, then we're going to have to have a system where we have a CFSC that is elected, that's a body, and that's the people that try the case.  And I just don't think it's proper to bring in people from different CFSCs, from different colleges.
Senator Kalter: Got you.  Okay.  So, let me ask you a question before I ask for a second on your motion.  There is also a B.2 that says, "In all disciplinary proceedings, faculty members have the right to due process, to timely notice, to seek advice" and then after the fall discussion it was added, "to expect and request the recusal of individuals with conflicts of interest from involvement in the proceedings, to request an obtain a formal meeting or hearing with any committee or individual involved in the proceedings."  Would you be also motioning to strike that first clause?  The one that says "to expect and request the recusal of individuals with conflicts of interest."  In other words, are we getting rid of recusals altogether or are we simply getting rid of the replacement of people who have been recused?  What is the proposal there?  What is your motion to amend?
Senator Horst: That would be people who would be going against the Code of Ethics, 1.17, if you had a conflict of interest.  I just don't like this idea of pulling in people from…  Senator Blum talked last time about this feeling that we're…
Senator Kalter: So, let me interrupt you because we don't have much time because you've already made your argument really nicely.  What I'm asking is whether you are also including in your motion to strike the idea of striking that language in B.2.

Senator Horst: No, I'm not.

Senator Kalter: Okay, thank you.  Thank you.  Okay, so we have a motion to strike B3.  Does anyone want to second that motion?  All right.  That motion will not go.  Do we have further debate on Article XII, which currently has a friendly amendment crossing out probationary in B.5?

Senator Lonbom: I just have a question. Can I ask a question now or not?

Senator Kalter: Sure.  We're breaking all the rules here.

Senator Lonbom: I'm just going to go back to two weeks ago.  I want to make sure I'm clear.  Are we no longer looking at all, is it just gone, Article XII that was sent to us from URC in September?  Is the document with the revisions that were made over winter break that is what we're looking at right now?

Senator Kalter: That is what we're looking at.  We can take every single mark-up out of it, but I don't know why we would have spent all of fall semester making changes to it if we were going to just vote on that one.
Senator Lonbom: I just want to be clear what it is.  So, we are only looking at the marked up copy?

Senator Kalter: Correct.  We can make any changes to that copy before we vote it in, assuming that we do vote it in.  We may decide that we don't want to have disciplinary articles and have spent the last five years coming to that conclusion.  

Senator Horst: That was a good one, Susan.

Senator Kalter: Thank you, because I was about to get real serious about that.  We don't want to do that, I don't think, because as afraid as I am that DFSCs might go crazy with these articles and start, you know, accusing people willy-nilly, it's worse that the people who have been suspended over the past decade had no process, absolutely no process.  They had no due process.  They relied solely on their administration and a little bit on the chair of the Senate trying to guide that administration.  So if we vote with B.3 in it, we are voting to have CFSCs jointly decide cases in cases of recusal.

Senator Mainieri: Since we're breaking all the rules, can I ask another question?

Senator Kalter: Certainly, yes.  

Senator Mainieri: So, Senator Horst's motion did not go through.  So, if we were to vote on this, there could be other ideas for how to resolve this situation.  So I'm wondering, what path can we take so that we can have maybe some more time to consider the other options that might be available to solve these decisions?
Senator Kalter: Great question.  What I would recommend is that we table this motion and that we move to Article XIII, begin debating that one, and that people send in further wording.  So we had one round of that last time, but Exec can go back to the drawing board and do that again.  And so that's what I would recommend because I don't think anybody wants the one that's on the table right now except maybe the rest of Article XII, but not Article XII.B.3.  So, would you like to make that motion?
Senator Mainieri: I would like to move to table this.

Motion by Senator Mainieri, seconded by Senator Nichols, to table the motion to approve Article XII.  The motion was unanimously approved. 
01.09.18.11 Article XIII, Sanctions, FC Final 2018
Senator Kalter: Excellent.  We're not even going to call for the nays.  Let's move.  We only have about 25 minutes – actually 20 minutes left.  But let's try to look at least a little bit at the Sanctions Article.  This one, I think, may be a little bit simpler and hopefully that's true of the other three articles as well.  So let me go through what the changes were.  In the Sanctions article under XIII.A, it was a clarifying of what the meaning of progressive nature of discipline was, and hopefully it did clarify.  In section B, Types of Sanctions, there was a creating of a category of penalties and training out of the penalties category because it's not really that great to tell somebody that their training is a penalty.  Right?  That loads the dice as though you're going to hate your training when the training is supposed to be formative and corrective.  There is a more detailed definition of a reprimand, protecting the university also from public censure except where certain to be appropriate.  In other words, only the President can authorize public censure.  That is to protect people from loose lips, essentially, and also to protect the university so that it doesn't have a big PR problem on its hands.  Added a guardrail regarding demotion as a sanction.  That was not in the original thing, but the AAUP has commentary on it and I think that it's better to have something in there than not something in there about that.  That essentially demotion can only be imposed if somebody fraudulently, dishonestly, got their promotion or their appointment.  
Allowing reassignment without total loss of all three pillars.  What the heck did that mean?  Oh, yes.  This was the big debate that we had in the fall that we are thinking of temporary assignment as, here, changing it so that rather than taking somebody fully out of research (which we want to consider a suspension rather than a sanction), this allows a little bit of adjustment of a person's schedule or what have you.  But it is a kind of reassignment that does not take you fully out of teaching, research, or service as a possible penalty.  In C.1, removing the word "informal" according to Senator Pancrazio's request.  Allowing faculties to submit documentation and to request a hearing.  This makes the disciplinary articles consistent with the rest of ASPT policy that you are always able to have a hearing with the people who are deciding your case and to submit documentation.  It reinforces the right to counsel in a certain spot.  It reminds deans that they also have to follow confidentiality, and it builds in time for those hearings to happen.  And then in C.2 of XIII, it again removes the Integrity and AFEGC stuff and keeps that separate, adds law to policy for OEOA.  What that means is that currently in C.2 it says that a Provost can initiate something if they receive from the Office of Equal Opportunity and Access a substantiated finding of a violation.  Added to that, and this could be wrong but it seemed potentially wise to add, that and/or state or federal laws prohibiting harassment or discrimination.  But that would still come from OEOA.  And then restricting what DFSCs learn (if they are not the initiators) and also eventually when they learn it, and then removing the term "corrective actions" so that we don't have people assigned to take therapy for 45 years or something like that.  So those are the main changes that we made between the fall version of this and this version.  Since we went a little bit too hastily to an action item on the last one, let's start here with an information item and ask if people have any questions, comments, concerns about any of those  changes.
Dr. Ellerton: I had one comment about before because I know there was a lot of discussion earlier about temporary reassignments and the severity and how that would be interpreted.  But I think in our discussion in URC, we regarded temporary as…  We didn't regard it in that way as the most severe sanction.  It was one of the possible sanctions.  And perhaps I'd like to express, or try and discriminate, about what was meant.  So, I think certainly my concern, and I think the committee's concern, would be that some temporary reassignments are done for reasons other than sanctions.  And I would say that again the chair of department sometimes has to reassign.  If that's in there as regarded as a significant sanction, then any other temporary reassignments could be misinterpreted by the faculty member or by others in the department as being a form of sanction when they're not.  I haven't got a suggestion for the way around it, but I think by writing it in that it's the most severe sanction opens that up to a possible misinterpretation.

Senator Kalter: So you would suggest that we remove the words "are generally considered the most severe sanction" and just revert back to the way the sentence was:  "Temporary reassignments may be used as a disciplinary action that modifies a faculty member's teaching, research, or service" etc.  

Dr. Ellerton: Right.

Senator Kalter: Okay.  Thank you.  Anybody have any objections to removing that part of XIII.B.4?  If not, we can take that out.  I wondered whether that might be brought up, and it has been.  So let's just strike that.  I would consider that a friendly amendment and hopefully the Executive Committee does as well.  Any other observations?
Senator Ferrence: Just a comment on that last thread.  I mean, I think it's fine to take it out, but I also see the spirit of why it was in, and in some ways the other thing that you could have chosen to do is say temporary reassignments when done as a form of sanction because that's part of the issue is that it's in the sanctions that we're referring to it.  I mean, it's pretty routine to get temporary reassignments through different things.  I had one last spring because a colleague took medical leave and I was reassigned to cover.  But I wouldn't misinterpret it there.  So in some ways I like seeing that it's pointing out the severity, but then maybe adding a qualifier that just says temporary sanctions, or temporary reassignments when used as a sanction are generally considered the most severe sanction.

Senator Kalter: Okay.  So you've raised whether or not that's a friendly strike-out, so even though I struck it through, I will…

Senator Ferrence: You can un-strike it if you want.

Senator Kalter: I'm trying to gauge where people are on that.  Do people agree more with Senator Ferrence or with the strike-out?

Senator Mainieri: I'm not sure how useful it is to differentiate between the severity of the sanction.  I think it's a sanction.  So I would say I'm not sure – and this was my thought when we first had this discussion – I'm not sure that the first sentence actually adds anything.  I think it's a sanction.

Senator Kalter: So you think striking it out is better.  Okay.  Anyone else?

Dr. Dean: I had two separate comments to make.  The first was to echo Dr. Ellerton in just saying that the URC had endeavored not to rank sanctions intentionally because it's almost… for several reasons.  We put them in categories which, in one of the earlier drafts they were rank ordered, and we chose to move them into categories because the severity of the sanction really can be relative.  To me, it might be more severe if you reduced my salary or took away some pay than just reassigned me out of, you know, a course for a while.  So I think those are relative, severity can be.  But because it also gives…  We're trying to envision how these might be used, and some of the sanctions might be more appropriate in some instances than others.  So you might want to go to one first as opposed to another, and it's not necessarily because that's the most severe sanction.  It might be just be because it's the most appropriate for the matter at hand.  But another question that I had related to temporary reassignments is that I just had a point of confusion.  It does bring in Article XII.A.2.  In Article XII.A.2 it says, "A faculty member's duties may be temporarily reassigned while grounds for disciplinary action are being investigated."  So that temporary reassignment is of a different nature than this, a temporary reassignment being implemented as a specific sanction.  So we might need some different wording.
Senator Kalter: We already do have different wording in XII.A.2.  There was a sentence added that says that that kind of reassignment would only occur under defined circumstances and in the manner described in Article XIV.  In other words, that kind of reassignment is a suspension.

Dr. Dean: Is just for in the case of suspension.  Okay.  Thank you because I also had a note to ask you if you meant XIII and not XIV.  So thank you.

Senator Kalter: No, I definitely meant XIV there.  Absolutely.  That should never happen unless there is imminent harm or severe disruption.  Thank you.  Further comments?
Senator Horst: Yeah.  I have a question about the wording in B.1.  It says, "Any reprimand involving public censure must be approved by the President prior to being enacted."  Can you go through the logic as to why it's the President and not, for instance, the Provost?

Senator Kalter: Because the President is the one who has to defend the university when somebody does something really, really stupid.  And let me tell you, at least one of the cases that I know of, there was somebody who did something of a public nature that should never have been done.  So the President would have to authorize it because he, whoever the Jay Groves will be, are the ones that will have to defend that department, that college, and the Provost.  So the idea is that the PR section of the university is housed under the President because, depending on the case, it could have state legislature ramifications essentially.  So an example would be if somebody publicly…  If somebody knows that a case is going on or even has completed but it was completed in a confidential way, and then they go telling other people that that person has been accused and found guilty of something, let's say somebody outside the university, that's fairly severe.  They happen to know of the case, right?  And they're telling somebody else that somebody was disciplined.  I mean, obviously that also breaks ASPT policy anyway, but that was the logic there.

Senator Horst: Because there's potential press involved.

Senator Kalter: There are faculty who have ongoing relationships with other people inside and outside the university where those relationships, if there is a public censure, can be ruined which is beyond the scope of what the sanction was supposed to have been.  Does that make sense?  So let's say they were sanctioned, that they had their salary docked, but somebody in the process publicly censures them – maybe sends an e-mail to their department – that, then, puts that person in a weaker position even though all that they had was a demotion in salary for some period of time.  Any other questions on Article XIII?  And we only have eight minutes left.

Dr. Dean: I'll go fast.  I just had a friendly suggestion.  In C.1.c-d and C.2.c-d, the potential for a hearing by the CFSC was inserted.  We had reasons why we left that out, but I understand your reasons for why you put it in.  My friendly suggestion is that where we did have it in the Dismissal Article, we also then laid out all of the rules and guidelines for how such hearings would proceed.  So you might want to reference that in these articles so that you have a process for how that will unfold.

Senator Kalter: I believe that's in the Appeals articles.  Let me look.

Dr. Dean: No, Dismissal Article A…  No, B.5.  Hearings by the CFSC is how those are conducted.

Senator Kalter: So this is not as elaborate a process as a dismissal hearing.  So I'm not sure that those would be appropriate.  So, for example, in XV.B.5, a member of the Faculty Caucus attends the hearing.  A member of the administration attends the hearing, etc.  This is more in line with what would happen in a performance evaluation type of appeal or a tenure/promotion type of appeal.  And the reason, just to reiterate, the reason that that was placed in there is it's not fair not to have a faculty member be able to talk to the people who are about to take their salary away or to suspend them or what have you if they would like to speak to the CFSC and give them evidence.  We always do that in ASPT process and it would be very unusual for us not to allow that in discipline.
Dr. Dean: That makes sense.  Then you may want to reference that instead.  And then the second part to that is just a question.  Where it references that faculty may request a hearing by the FRC, my understanding in the green book is that the FRC hears cases and they may request that people appear to them, but it's not that faculty can request to have a hearing with FRC.

Senator Kalter: Okay.  We can look at that.  I'm not sure that I would agree that that's a wise thing to remove in any case.  Again, if you're about to get suspended and you really feel like you have a case, it seems different from a tenure and promotion case.  

Dr. Dean: I agree with you, but then you may want to consider at some point looking at the other because it seems to me if I were going to have an opportunity to request a hearing for a disciplinary, why would I not have an opportunity to request the hearing when it's tenure – keeping my job or not keeping my job?  

Senator Kalter: Thank you.  Other comments/observations?  It looks like we might…  Are we ready to move this into action or would we prefer to wait?

Senator Jones-Bock: I have one more comment.  I just want to make sure that I'm understanding this correctly that under B.4 in looking at modifying a faculty member's teaching, research, or service activities but does not relieve the faculty member of any one of these three essential job duties during a given semester.  So if I have a faculty member that, due to performance, needs to have training and maybe to ensure that students are successful for a test or what not and they just haven't embedded that over time, are we saying that teaching can't be pulled while we're doing the training?
Senator Kalter: Not all teaching.  So it could be if you wanted to suspend the person.  Right?  And the chairperson would still have the power that's already in the chairperson's responsibilities to assign that person with different classes.  Right?  But you couldn't, for example, change the teaching load, like load on a fourth class on top of a usual 3-3 load without the initiation of a sanction by the DFSC.  So you would still have the ability to say, you know, you're not really working out teaching this class.  We're going to move you into this class.  And the chairperson has that right anyway, right?  The chair does the assignments.  But not doing stuff like punishing somebody for, you know, whatever it might be by saying everybody in the department is on a 3-3 load, but now I'm going to put you to a 4-4 load and not have the DFSC check on something like that.  Does that make sense?  But you can still, if it is a matter where all we're doing is changing where it appears in the articles…  So if it's a matter where that person needs to be pulled out of teaching but not research or service, it would be a suspension and it would go through basically the same process, but it would be a suspension.  All right.  What did I hear in my ear from Senator Horst?  That we do or do not want to move this to action tonight?
Senator Horst: I'm not making any more motions.

Senator Kalter: You're not making any more motions.  All right.  Do we or do we not want to move this article to action tonight, of course with the provision that if we passed it, it would not go anywhere until the rest of this stuff was passed?  Do we want to move it to action or do we want to adjourn?  

Senator Ferrence: I'll say I'm comfortable if we're moving to action just because we've had, I think, good discussion unless people are like, no. 

Senator Kalter: So are you making a motion to…
Senator Ferrence: I didn't hear anybody yell no.  So yes, I'm making a motion.

Senator Kalter: All right.  Senator Ferrence has made a motion that we approve Article XIII, Sanctions with the provision that it does not go into effect unless all of the articles are approved in some form. Do we have a second to that motion?
Motion by Senator Ferrence, seconded by Senator Crowley, to approve Article XIII, Sanctions with the provision that it does not go into effect unless all of the articles are approved in some form.
Senator Horst: Could you clarify the wording in B.4?

Senator Kalter: In what way?

Senator Horst: What is it going to read?

Senator Kalter: Oh, I'm sorry.  It was indecipherable what was happening, but I got mostly that this was a friendly amendment because nobody on the Executive Committee objected to the crossing out of that first thing about the most severe sanction.  So it would be going up with that as a cross-out, pace Senator Ferrence. 
Senator Ferrence: Well, I think we have gone back to what you had said, though, right?  We're just going to strike that part.
Senator Kalter: Right.  Exactly.  So the wording for B.4 would be, "Temporary assignments may be used as a disciplinary action that modifies a faculty member's teaching, research, or service activities" etc.  Any further debate?  All right.  Wow!  We actually did something tonight.
The motion was unanimously approved. 
Senator Kalter: Oh my god.  Congratulations to us.  And thank you for the thoughtfulness because we really do need to table that other motion and bring it back to the drawing board.  I hope and pray that that will be the hardest article of the whole bunch and so we'll just try to keep moving and get that one crafted really nicely.  All right.  Thank you.  Have a good night.  See you in two weeks.
Adjournment
